MAINE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Request for Proposals for Green Power Supplier Offer

Issued:  December 16, 2010

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

What percentage of customers receives their monthly bill electronically rather than in paper form?

Central Maine Power-21%

Bangor Hydro-5.47%

Maine Public Service-0%

Please provide the zip codes in each of the utility service territories.

Excel files containing the zip codes included in the service territory for each utility are available on the Commission website at www.maine.gov/mpuc/electricity/rfps/standard_offer/greenpower/ 

Does the Commission have a specific launch date for the green power program?

The Commission has not set a specific date for the implementation of the green power offer and expects that bidders will propose a tentative timeline for negotiating and executing the service agreements, establishing the necessary administrative protocols with the utilities and implementing customer information activities and sign up procedures, and any additional activities that must occur in advance of a launch date.
Are there specific rules around the timing and the size of the disbursements from the Conservation Program funds? For example, if a contract between the selected supplier and Maine PUC begins in mid 2011, can the marketing supplier access the 2011 funds at the time of contract start and then the 2012 funds at the beginning of 2012 or would they need to wait until the same month of year as the initial disbursement? 

There is no specific schedule or restraints around when a supplier may be able to access conservation program funds other than as explained below.  The MPUC expects that bidders will propose a tentative schedule for disbursements based on the specific provisions of their proposal.

If a three-year contract agreement spans four calendar years (i.e. the middle of 2011 through the middle of 2014), would the Green Power Offer Supplier have access to four years of Conservation Program funds (with a maximum total of $400,000)?  

35-A M.R.S.A. § 3210 (7) provides up to $100,000 per year from the conservation program fund to support efforts to inform electricity consumers of the opportunities available to purchase electricity generated using renewable resources.  The State’s fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30.  In this RFP, the Commission is not committing to funding beyond the initial $100,000 as explained below.
Are there any 2010 funds available for use in the program? 
There currently is available $100,000 in the Commission’s budget to support the development of the green power offer.  We expect bidders to submit proposals addressing the use of all or part of that amount in connection with start-up activities, including the development of a logo or brand for the program.

Some costs could be incurred by the utilities to administer this program, such as utility communications to educate customers on the program through bill inserts, web upgrades, and the training of call center representatives.  If assumptions are stated, may respondents reasonably assume that some or all of these costs will be approved to be rate-based for recovery? 
Section 4 (H) of Chapter 326
 provides that “All incremental and prudent costs incurred by the transmission and distribution utility to carry out activities required by this section are recoverable in rates.”  Section 4 as a whole addresses the utilities obligations and responsibilities.
Section 2.2 states: “In addition, to the extent applicable, the green power supplier will also be required, at the end of each year, to apply to the Maine Department of Environmental Protection for the Voluntary Renewable Energy Set-Aside under Maine’s Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative (RGGI) CO2 budget program.” Can you clarify what is meant by “to the extent applicable”?  Does this mean that the PUC is okay with a supplier not applying for the set-aside if the RECs are not Maine Class I or equivalent? 

“To the extent applicable” is intended to mean that if, according to the terms of the Maine RGGI program that is administered by the state Department of Environmental Protection, the REC’s used for the Green Power Offer also qualify for the voluntary set-aside, the supplier will apply for the voluntary set-aside.   The wording is open ended to allow for changes in the RGGI program but continue the requirement for the green power supplier to comply with the voluntary set-aside.  Qualification is not part of the RFP evaluation criteria and the statement is simply intended to clarify that, to the extent that they do qualify, the program administrator would be expected to apply to the Maine DEP for the voluntary set-aside.  If the RECs used for the Green Power Offer that are acceptable to the MPUC do not qualify for the RGGI set-aside, there is no requirement for the supplier to apply.  
Section 2.2 states: “In the event that the Commission determines that a green power offer comprised of RECs from within New England cannot be made available upon acceptable terms, it may arrange for a green offer comprised completely or partially of nonregion RECs.” What parameters that will be used to determine acceptable terms? 

The MPUC is interested in establishing a green power option for residential ratepayers that is an attractive alternative and not cost-prohibitive and recognizes that there may exist scenarios in which a green power option comprised completely of RECs from within New England could prove to be too expensive.  Consequently, in Section 3 (A) of Chapter 326, the Commission reserved the right to include out of region RECs upon the determination that New England GIS RECs could not be made available upon acceptable terms.  That determination is likely to be based on a situation in which the price of New England GIS RECs is too high to offer the green power option to customers at an appropriate price point.
Section 2.2 refers to non-region RECS that may be required to be certified by Green-e or “a similar certification program.”  What is meant by similar certification program? Does this include existing products in New England that have been approved by those State agencies? 

“Similar certification program” is simply intended to allow for an independent certification program that is not Green-e in the event that such a certification program exists and is acceptable to the MPUC.   It is not intended to suggest, for instance, that just because a particular non-region REC is acceptable for use in the green power offering in another New England state that it is acceptable in Maine.  
Are there any requirements regarding proposal response format?  For example, does the MPUC require hardcopies, and if so how many?  

There is no particular format required.  Please provide an electronic copy to Christine Cook at the email address provided by the RFP deadline and follow up with five (5) paper copies of the proposal, one for the Commission files and four additional for the proposal review team.  

� Chapter 326 refers to Chapter 326 of the MPUC’s Rules and is available on the Commission’s website








For additional information please contact

Christine R. Cook

Christine.r.cook@maine.gov
207-287-1392

January 27, 2011


